YORK

City in the County of York

York was the Roman Eboracum.   It was an episcopal see in 627.   Between 1155 and 1162 Henry II granted a charter.     Many charters followed and are  listed and explained in  “The Strays of York and their Management through the ages”, compiled in 1989 (revised 1996) by W.W.M.Nisbet.

The earliest existing roll of freemen is dated 1272 in the first year of the reign of Edward I and contains the names of some 36 new freemen. One at least was certainly admitted as the son of a freeman with possibly 12 others. Obviously therefore, these were not the  first freemen of York. It was not until 1309 however, that separate lists were kept.

The first female freemen admitted were Margaret de Coteneys and Emma de Normaton in 1297, Matilda Maunsall and Elena de Augram in 1309 and 1310 respectively. The first female to definitely receive her freedom by patrimony was one Emma Beleby daughter of John Beleby in 1411.

Children, grandchildren and great grandchildren are admitted so long as they were born after the person from whom they are claiming their freedom were themselves admitted to the freedom.

Both men and women are admitted to the freedom on equal terms and may pass it on in the same way.

Freemen are still admitted by servitude but it is many years now since one was so       admitted and it is thought that there is only one still living. The City Council who are      responsible for admissions have agreed to reduce the time limit to five years and could probably be persuaded to reduce it still further.

Persons seeking to become freemen must apply to the Electoral Registration Office of the City Council with proof of their claim. Subject to their claim being in order, he or she will be admitted at an Admissions Court presided over by the Lord Mayor. The Town Clerk swears in the witnesses who will identify the applicants. The applicant must then take the oath of allegiance to the Queen and repeat the first part of the Freemans Oath. The Town Clerk will them read to the applicants the Charge contained in the second part of the Oath. On completion of this the Lord Mayor will present to each new freeman his certificate. No admission fee is payable, but an administration fee of £20 is payable to the Council on admission.

Until the 1840s the City was divided into  four municipal wards which coincided with the four main gates to the City, and each ward had its own area of land, known as a stray, outside the City Walls on which the freemen living in that particular ward could graze their cattle. However, in 1907 the largest of the strays (Micklegate 412 acres) came     under the control of the corporation by the York (Micklegate strays) Act 1907. For this the corporation paid the Ward Freemen the annual sum of £l000, but in 1930 this was     commuted to a lump sum of £33,333.

The other three strays, Bootham (180 acres), Monkgate (130 acres) and Walmgate (105 acres) came under the control of the corporation by mutual agreement in 1947, 1948 and 1958 respectively. The corporation agreeing to maintain the strays for the benefit of the freemen and to make a small annual payment to the Ward Freemen. This agreement was subsequently found to be "ultra vires" so the corporation ceased to make this       payment whilst refusing to return the strays.

The York City Council Bill was introduced for the 1985/86 Session of Parliament and was entitled: 



Petitions were prepared and lodged in the names of (a) the Wardens and Pasture      Masters of the three Strays  (b) the Freemen of England Association ; and these two    Petitions were joined by one from the Commons Open Spaces and Footpaths Society.

The Bill fell in November 1988 and the provisions therein did not become law.   The three Strays should have been returned to the custody of the Freemen of York, broadly on the terms set out by the freemen on the 1st November 1984.    Unfortunately, to date the Chief Executive and City Solicitor have avoided, or have refused to have any meaningful                    communications with the Freemen’s Strays Council.   A full background to this York City Council Bill is given in the publication “The Strays of York and their management through the ages” — see references below.

The York Gild of Freemen was founded in 1953.   The first Master was a former Lord Mayor of York, Alderman J.H.Kaye.  The current membership is around 400.

The Gild Court consists of 22 members and meets monthly. The AGM being held in June in the presence of the Lord Mayor, who becomes the Gild's President for his year of      office.

The Gild eventually acquired a permanent home in 1983 in a 14th century building known as Bedern Hall.

There are  other gilds in York, but it is no longer a requirement to be a freeman in any,  although some have many freemen as members.

The late Harry Ward, a Past Master of the Gild of Freemen of the City of York, was the Founder President of the Freemen of England Association ( now Freemen of England and Wales).
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     W.W.M.Nisbet.
“An Act to re-enact with amendments certain local enactments in force within the city of York; to confer further powers on the Council of the City of york with respect to the management of the several Strays and to make provision with regard to public safety, public health, environmental   amenity and markets within the city; and for other purposes.”









